799.06 1911c



Constitution, By=Laws,

Masters

List of Members and Hunt Cup Winners



OF THE

Montreal Bunt.

3 Williams

st SEPTEMBER, 1907.



CONSTITUTION AND BY-LAWS

OF THE

Montreal Bunt.

ARTICLE I.

This Club shall be called the "Mont-REAL HUNT."

ARTICLE II.

The objects are for the encouragement of fox hunting, racing, driving, riding, and other sports, and for the maintenance of a country place for social meetings and purposes of amusement.

ARTICLE III.

1. There shall be a Committee for the general management of the affairs of the Hunt, consisting of the Master, Hon. Secretary, and five other members, of

18030

which three shall form a quorum. The Committee shall have power to appoint an Assistant Secretary.

- 2. The Master of the Hounds shall be the Chairman at all meetings, and besides taking charge of everything in the field, he shall see to the interior economy of the Hunt, and that all contracts and agreements are carried out.
- 3. The Hon. Secretary shall keep the books collect subscriptions, etc., under the directions of the Master.
- The Committee shall assist the other officers of the Hunt with their advice and co-operation.
- 5. Should the Master or Hon. Secretary be unable to attend to their duties, any member of the Committee can act for them.
- 6. Sales, contracts, etc., must be laid before the Committee.
- 7. The Committee may from time to time make such rules as they may find

expedient for the management and use of the Club House, grounds, stables and property.

8. If any member of the Committee should resign, or should a death vacancy occur, the Committee shall have power to fill such vacancy.

ARTICLE IV.

- 1. The Annual General Meeting shall be held on the last Wednesday in January of each year, at which seven members shall form a quorum, when the officers for the ensuing year shall be elected by ballot, the accounts received, and the usual business transacted.
- 2. Special general meetings may at any time be called by the Master, or by any five members forwarding to the Master a demand in writing stating the object thereof; the Master shall then call a general meeting, stating the object thereof, and the day of said meeting shall be within ten days of receipt of requisition, and seven members shall form a quorum.

3. Notice of all general meetings of members shall be mailed to the last known post office address of each member at least three days previous to the day fixed, and such notice shall be sufficient.

ARTICLE V.

I. The number of members to be limited to two hundred and fifty exclusive of Honorary, Non-Resident and Privileged. Each candidate for admission shall be proposed by one member and seconded by another, by a proposal in writing, to be inserted in the book of candidates and signed by both proposer and seconder, and shall be balloted for at any ballot which may take place after the lapse of one week from the time of such proposal, provided the name of the candidate and his proposer and seconder have been posted in the Club Room at least one week before the day of ballot. No ballot shall be valid unless fifteen members actually ballot: and one black ball in seven shall exclude.

- 2. No candidate who has been twice rejected shall be eligible again, nor shall he be admitted into the Club House as a visitor.
- 3. The names of Candidates for membership shall be mailed to members at least three days before the ballot.
- 4. The ballot to take place between the hours of ten a.m. and four p.m. The ballot box to be opened only in the presence of two members of the Committee. When the number of members is 200 or over, elections of ordinary members shall not be held unless ordered by the Committee.
- 5. The entrance fee shall be one hundred dollars, and the annual subscription fifty dollars, the latter payable in advance on the first of January in each year. Members elected subsequent to the 30th of September will pay a subscription of twenty-five dollars for the year then current.

- 6. Members residing more than five hundred miles from Montreal for over one year, may, by paying an annual subscription of five dollars during such absence, rejoin the Hunt without being ballotted for or paying an entrance fee.
- 7. Absentee members returning to Montreal and remaining in the city more than two weeks and less than six months shall be liable for half the Annual Subscription. If remaining in the city for a longer period than six months, they shall be liable for the full Annual Subscription.
- 8. The following persons shall be eligible for election as Privileged Members:—
- (a) Officers in His Majesty's Army and Navy and in His Active Militia Permanent Force of the Dominion of Canada;
- (b) Any member, civil or military, of the staff of His Excellency the Governor-General for the time being;
- (c) Any person holding a military and civil appointment under the Imperial Gov-

ernment who may be stationed in Canada for an indefinite period.

(d) Any Consul-General wholly engaged in the public service of his country who may be stationed in Canada for an indefinite period.

Any candidate for privileged membership shall be stated to be so on the posted list of candidates; the cause of the privilege must have been previously sanctioned by the Committee.

A privileged member is relieved of payment of the entrance fee, but is subject to payment of \$25.00 for each period of six months dated from the 1st of January and 1st of July, and is subject to the Constitution and Regulations of the Club.

A privileged member shall enjoy all the privileges of the Club, except voting, holding office, introducing strangers as fortnightly guests, or having an interest in the property of the Club.

Any privileged member desiring to become an ordinary member of the Club must be ballotted for again, under the provisions required for ordinary members.

ARTICLE VI.

- 1. The name of every member failing to pay his annual subscription shall be exhibited on the first of April, and if the subscription be not paid on or before the first of July, the Hon. Secretary shall report accordingly to the Committee, who may cause his name to be erased from the list of members; but he may be readmitted by the Committee upon assigning to them reasons which they may consider satisfactory for his failure of payment. Any member whose dues are all paid shall be at liberty to withdraw from the Hunt on his written application to that effect, sent to the Secretary before the Annual Genral Meeting of the Hunt.
- 2. Any member ceasing to belong to the Hunt, by resignation or otherwise, shall have no claim on any of the effects or property belonging to the Hunt.

3. No member shall be entitled to vote on any occasion or enjoy any privileges until he shall have paid whatever fees may be due by him to the Hunt.

ARTICLE VII.

Honorary Members may be elected at any General Meeting of the Hunt upon receiving a two-thirds vote of the members present at said meeting, and they will enjoy all privileges of Ordinary Members with the exception of voting.

ARTICLE VIII.

If any member be guilty of conduct which, in the opinion of the Committee, is detrimental to the character or interests of the Hunt, the Committee shall summon such member to appear before them to explain his conduct, and if he neglect to appear, or, having appeared, shall fail to satisfy them, the Committee may suspend such member from the privileges of the Hunt for a period not exceeding two

months, or they may call an extraordinary meeting of the Hunt to consider the matter, and it shall be competent for such meeting, by a vote of two-thirds of the members present thereat, to suspend or expel such member from the Hunt.

ARTICLE IX.

- 1. Any race meeting under Hunt auspices cannot take place unless decided upon at a general meeting called for the purpose, and the expenses of said race meeting must be kept separate from the Hunt accounts.
- 2. The programme to be prepared and announced previous to the first of August in each year.
- 3. All Stewards elected for such races shall be chosen from the members exclusively, with the exception of the Mayor of the City of Montreal for the time being. Five Stewards to form a quorum.

4. The Master, the Hon. Secretary and Committee shall be *ipso facto* Stewards, and the Master President of them.

ARTICLE X.

The uniform of the Hunt shall be scarlet with dark blue facings.

ARTICLE XI.

Any article of this constitution may be altered, amended or suspended for any period by consent of two-thirds of the members present at any Special General Meeting convened for that purpose, or at the Annual General Meeting, provided that such alteration, amendment or suspension shall have been specified in the notice summoning such meeting.

ARTICLE XII.

All By-Laws of the Hunt passed and in force previous to the first of January, 1898, are hereby repealed.

ARTICLE XIII.

The members shall pay their bills wouthly, at the beginning of each month. The Committee shall, on the fifteenth of each month, cause to be posted in the Club Room, the names of members in arrears for the previous month; and any member so posted, who fails to pay his bill by the end of the current month, shall not receive further credit, and shall be liable to suspension or expulsion.

... RULES...

TO GOVERN THE CLUB HOUSE AND PROPERTY.

1. The affairs of the Club House and grounds shall be managed by the Master and Committee.

A House Committee shall be appointed by the Committee from time to time, to look after the detail, management and working of the Club House.

- 2. The Committee shall have power to prohibit any game or sport which they may consider prejudicial to the good order and interest of the Hunt.
- 3. Gentlemen residing in Montreal or vicinity may be introduced for one day, not oftener than once in thirty days, unless for meals; the names of such guests to

be entered in the visitor's book. This privilege may be suspended on special occasions.

- 4. Strangers residing more than 100 miles from the City of Montreal may be introduced as privileged members for a period not exceeding fourteen days; the names and places of residence of such strangers and members shall be recorded in a book kept for that purpose: such privileged member to be introduced on the written requisition of one member, he undertaking to pay any obligations the privileged member may incur, and such introduction to have the approval of one member of the Executive Committee. After expiration of fourteen days, such strangers may continue to make use of the Club for a period not exceeding three months on payment of Five Dollars per month.
- 5. The Club House and grounds shall be open to ladies and children of any member's family, and to other ladies and

children accompanied by a member, save and except any particular rooms or portions of the grounds that may be set apart by the Committee for the exclusive use of members. But members' sons over 18 cannot make use of the Club House and grounds unless accompanied by a member.

- 6. No member shall give any money or gratuity to any servant.
- 7. No member shall take away from the Club House, upon any pretence whatever, any newspaper, pamphlet, book, map or other article, the property of the Club.
- 8. Any cause of complaint that may arise shall be written and signed by the member complaining, which complaint must be specially noticed by the House Committee, and any inattention or improper conduct of a servant is to be signified in writing, over the signature of such member, and must be laid before the Committee at their next meeting.

- 9. Bedrooms.—The charge for a bedroom shall be 50c. per night. No bedroom can be retained for more than three consecutive nights; but, if at the expiration of that time, the room is not required for any other member, it may be retained from day to day, on the distinct understanding that the member retaining it must be prepared to vacate within four hours, provided notice is given before 9 o'clock a.m. A notice placed in the room shall be considered as delivered to a member. No meals shall be served in the bedrooms.
- IO. SMOKING ROOM.—This room shall be exclusively for the use of members and their friends. No refreshments from the kitchen, other than sandwiches, toast, or biscuits shall be served in this room.
- shall be for the use of ladies of any member's family and any other ladies accompanied by a member, or it can be reserved by any member for a party of not less than

eight persons, on giving notice to the Steward not less than six hours in advance.

- 12. GENERAL DINING ROOM.—All meals shall be served in this room to members and their friends. Smoking strictly forbidden.
- 13. COMMITTEE ROOM.—This room may be used by members, except when required for the use of the Committee.
- of the Club House for an evening entertainment of his own, Saturdays and holidays excepted, on making application to the Secretary in writing not less than ten days before the date of the proposed entertainment; notice of such reservation to be sent to every member not less than five days previous to the date of said entertainment. The charge in such cases shall be \$40, but not more than one evening in a week can be so reserved. On such occasions the Club House will be closed at six p m.

15. STABLES.—The charges shall be 25c. for each feed and 25c. for stall per night. No stall can be retained for more than three consecutive nights, but, if at the expiration of that time, the stall is not required for the horse of any other member, it may be retained from day to day on the distinct understanding that the member retaining it must be prepared to remove his horse within four hours, provided notice is given before 9 o'clock a m.

PREVIOUS MASTERS 1826-1904.

- 1826 WM. FORSYTH.
- 1834 J. B. FORSYTH.
- 1837 CAPTAIN WALTER JONES.
- 1839 J. STOCKLEY, SR., R.A.
- 1842 J. STOCKLEY, JR., R.A.
- 1844 CAPTAIN THE HON, H. FANE KEANE, R.E.
- 1851 CAPTAIN CHARLES LUTYENS.
- 1852 J. Ponsonby Cox, R.E.
- 1853 D. LORN MACDOUGALL.
- 1857 D. A. BELLHOUSE
- 1860 Major J. T. D. Bourke.
- 1863 CAPTAIN FRANCIS DE WINTON, R.A.
- 1864 JOHN CRAWFORD.
- 1874 ANDREW ALLAN.
- 1876 JOHN CRAWFORD.
- 1878 J. R. HUTCHINS.
- 1879 CAPTAIN E. A. C. CAMPBELL.
- 1882 A. BAUMGARTEN.
- 1887 HUGH PATON.
- 1888 JOHN CRAWFORD.
- 1891 H. MONTAGU ALLAN.
- 1896 GEORGE R. HOOPER.
- 1904 CHARLES MCEACHRAN.

Winners of the Montreal Hunt Cup.

		FROM 1868.	
	OWNER.	HORSE.	RIDER.
85	Mr. Mahiot.	Royal.	Mr. Harry W. Alloway.
26	Mr. C. F. Elwes.	Boumetle.	Mr. C. F. Elwes.
9	50 Capt. Trecheme.	Fireaway.	Mr. Harry W. Alloway.
63	•	Wild Irishman.	Mr. C. F. Elwes.
54	Mr. D. L. MacDougall.	Valparaiso.	Mr. Harry W. Alloway.
55	Mr. Thos. Davidson.	The Squire.	Mr. Harry W. Alloway.
96	٠		
1			

22

1858	Mr. N		Royal.	Mr. Harry W. Alloway.
1859			Boumetle.	Mr. C. F. Elwes.
1860	Capt. Trecheme.			Mr. Harry W. Alloway.
1.863			Wild Irishman.	Mr. C. F. Elwes.
1864	Mr. D. L. MacDougall.			Mr. Harry W. Alloway.
+865	Mr. Thos. Davidson.	•	The Squire.	Mr. Harry W. Alloway.
1866		:	:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::	
1867			•	
8981		:	:	:
1869	1869 Mr. A. Torrance.		Hopeful.	Mr. C. J. Alloway.
1870.	1870.	:		
1871	Mr. Andrew Allan.	ch, m.	Primrose.	Mr. C. J. Alloway.
	Mr. D. J. Bannatyne.	ch. h.		Mr. D. J. Bannatyne.
	Mr. Andrew Allan.	•	Tradewind.	Mr. C. J. Alloway.
1874	Dr. W. H. Hingston.	ch. g.		Mr. F. L. Hart.
	Mr. Andrew Allan.	-	Astronomer.	Mr. C. J. Alloway.
	Major Handyside.	р. Н	ne.	Mr. J. Alex. Gordon.
	Montreal Hunt.		Fusileer.	Mr. J. Alex. Gordon.
1878	Mr. Jas. O'Brien.			Mr. S. Penniston.
1879	Mr. C. J. Alloway.	•	Jack Frost.	Mr. C. J. Alloway.
1880	Mr. J. E. Mullin.	b. h.	Moonstene.	Mr. J. Alex. L. Strathy.
1881	Mr. J. P. Danes.	ch. m.	Rose.	Mr. J. Alex. L. Strathy.

-00- NE. A1-

	23	
Mr. J. Alex. L. Strathy.	Mr. S. Penniston. Mr. S. Penniston. Mr. C. W. Penniston. Mr. J. Alex. I. Strathy. Mr. F. Elliott. Mr. F. Elliott. Mr. F. Elliott. Mr. F. Elliott. Mr. E. J. Major. Mr. E. J. Major. Mr. E. J. Major. Mr. Colin Campbell. Mr. Colin Campbell. Mr. Colin Campbell. Mr. Golin Campbell. Mr. Golin Campbell. Mr. Golin Campbell. Mr. Golin Campbell. Mr. J. G. Johnston. Mr. J. G. Johnston. Mr. J. G. Sardmore. Mr. J. G. Watson. Mr. John Sector. Mr. John Sector. Mr. John Sector. Mr. John Sector. Mr. J. G. B. Strathy.	
יאואבי	Little Jack. Pılot. Madeline. Ivy. Echo. Wishimay. Echo. Slickaway. Hard Times. Slickaway. Lancer. Mamwood. Royal Bob. Laddie Magic. The Squire. The Pal. Jim Lisle. Round View. Bob McGregor. Bob McGregor. But McGregor. Bob McGregor. Bob McGregor. Bob McGregor. Bob McGregor. Bob McGregor.	0
1111	ដុំក្នុក្នុក្នុក្នុក្នុក្នុក្នុក្នុក្នុក្នុ	io :
The state of the s	Mr. Alex. Esdaile. Mr. S. Penniston. Mr. A. E. Penniston. Mr. A. E. Penniston. Mr. H. Prysdale. Dr. R. Craik. Mr. H. Drysdale. Mr. H. Drysdale. Mr. E. J. Major. Mr. E. J. Major. Mr. E. J. Major. Mr. Colin Campbell. Mr. Wm. Hendrie, Jr. Mr. J. H. Smith. Mr. J. C. Watson. Mr. J. C. Watson. Mr. J. C. Watson. Mr. H. H. Learmont. Mr. H. H. Learmont. Mr. E. de B. Strathy. Mr. E. de B. Strathy.	
	1883 1883 1884 1885 1886 1888 1889 1890 1890 1890 1890 1890 1900 190	2061

MONTREAL HUNT.

1907.

Master.

WM. R. MILLER.

Executive Committee.

GEORGE R. HOOPER. BARTLETT MCLENNAN.

H. B. MACDOUGALL. H. HAMPSON.

ALAN G. LAW.

Hon. Secretary.

, A. E. OGILVIE.

LIST OF MEMBERS.

oo Brock, R. A. 76 Allan, Hugh A. 80 Allan, Sir H. Montagu of Buchanan, A. W. P. 82 Allan, Bryce J. 02 Burnett, Philip, M.D. 82 Allan, Robt. A. 03 Bagg, R. Stanley 83 Allan, Archibald 03 Byers, W. G. M., M. D. oo Angus, W. F. 03 Brosseau, T., K.C. or Archer, Robt. 03 Brown, B. Hal or Adair, Robert 03 Brown, B. H. 03 Allan, Andrew A. os Browne, W. G. 03 Atwater, Hon. A. W. o5 Burland, Col. J. II. o6 Aldred, J. E. o7 Bosworth, G. M. 07 Ashe, F. W. 07 Beattie, John o7 Burnett, Hugh

74 Baumgarten, A.

83 Bell, James, M D.

93 Brainerd, D.

95 Beardmore, F. N.

97 Barnard, E. A.

98 Benson, Geo. F.

98 Birkett, H. S., M.D.

99 Buchanan, C. W.

83 Clouston, E. S.

07 Buchan, Col. L.

83 Cassils, Chas.

86 Caverhill, George

87 Campbell, Colin

91 Chevalier, M.

97 Campbell, C. S., K.C.

97 Costigan, R.	90 Evans, J. S.
98 Cassils, H. B.	98 Evans, A. B.
98 Cook, G. W.	98 Evans, W. H.
00 Cains, George L.	07 Ekers, L. A.
00 Cantlie, Geo. S.	67 Evans, Capt. W. H.
or Cantlie, Jr., J. A.	
03 Coristine, James	
03 Cowans, Percy P.	
o5 Cushing, Thos.	83 Forget, Hon. L. J.
o6 Campbell, R. Percival	96 Farmer, G. A.
07 Carruthers, James	97 Foster, G. G., K.C.
07 Cantin, C. A.	or Forget, Rodolphe
07 Creak, George	03 Foster, H. Stuart
	o6 Finley, S. A.
	07 Fitzhugh, E. H.
61 Dawes, Jas. P.	07 Fairbank, F.
94 Dobell, W. M.	07 Fuller. H. J.
98 Davis, M. B.	•
98 Davies, J. Try	
98 Douglas, John A.	81 Gault, L. H.
00 Davis, Maurice E.	86 Graham, Hugh
ot Dawes, Andrew J.	97 Greenshields, R. A. E.,
or Davidson, T. Charles	K.C.
04 Davidson, Hon. Justice	e 99 Gault, Hamilton
04 Davidson, James	99 Gordon, Charles B.
o5 Dale, L. J.	or Gault, C. Ernest
o7 Drummond, G. E.	o1 Garland, C. Simpson
o7 Dodd, W. O. H.	OI Greenshields, E. B.
07 Drummond, T. J.	or Grant, W. A.

or Gault, Reginald

02 Greene, George A.

03 Greene, E. Kirk

04 Giroux, C. A.

o7 Geoffrion, A.

97 Ibbotson, Dr. J. S.

99 Ives, Dr. A. Scott

95 Johnston, H. G.

07 Judah, H. H.

07 Judah, F. R.

88 Hooper, Geo. R. 92 Holt, Herbert S.

96 Hooper, A. W.

97 Hays, C. M.

98 Henshaw, Lieut.-Col. F. C.

98 Hosmer, Chas. R.

99 Hendrie, Murray 99 Hickson, J. Claude

or Hanson, William

or Hampson, Harold

or Hoare, C. S.

03 Hutchinson, F. L.

03 Heney, E. N.

03 Holt, C. M., K. C.

o3 Hope, W.

03 Holland, Philip

os Hare, C. T. os Hodgson, W. C.

07 Hebden, E. F.

o7 Holt, A. E.

98 King, James C.

98 Keator, James

o2 Kidd, Thos. C.

89 Leslie, Major J. N. S. 03 Henderson, Geo. W.S. 95 Laforest, J. O. A.

or Learmont, H. H.

or Lemay, E. H.

03 Law, Allan G.

03 Lafleur, Eugene, K.C.

o6 Logan, R. S.

o6 Labatt, Theodore

o6 Lachapelle E.P., M.D.

o6 Loring, Robt.

82 Meredith, H. V.

84 Maltby, W. L.

88 Morrice, D., Jr.

89 Miller, W. R.

92 Mann, D. D.

92 Meighen, F. S.

96 Morrice, W. J.

98 Morrice, R. B.

98 Morrice, D., Sr.

99 Meredith, Charles

99 Molson, H. Markland

oo Mathewson, F. H.

oo Matthias, Percy F.

or Molson, W. A., M.D.

03 Mitchell, Allister

03 Molson, Fred. W.

03 Molson, Herbert

05 Muir, J. Gillespie

05 Morse, F. W. 05 Marler, Herbert M.

of Mignault, Dr. Arthur

68 MacDougall, H. S.

87 Mackay, Robert Hon.

of Macdonell, A. R.

92 Macmaster, D., K.C.

95 MacDougall, H. B.

95 MacKenzie, A. Allan

97 MacLean, Lt.-Col. J. B.

98 Macpherson, W. M.

99 MacKenzie, J. Gordon

oo MacDougall, H. L.

oo MacDougall, R. W.

or Mackay, Geo. B.

or Mackay, Hugh

of MacTier, A. D.

o6 MacInnes, W. R.

o5 MacDougall, G. W.

07 Macculloh, Robt.

. 68 McEachran, Dr. D.

81 McIntyre, W. C. 83 McEachran, Dr. Chas.

87 McIntyre, Duncan

92 McLennan, Bartlett

98 McCuaig, C. J.

98 McGibbon, R.D., K.C. 98 McIntyre, C. C.

99 McIntyre, J. Malcolm

o6 McLea, R. P.

93 Ogilvie, A. E.

99 Oswald, Malcolm

99 Ouimet, Justice J. Ald. 89 Robertson, F.

o2 Ogden, I. G.

03 O'Brien, W. P.

03 Ouimet, Paul 03 Ogilvie, G. L.

07 Ogilvie, Shirley

o7 Oppe, John

86 Ross, R. B.

89 Robert, E. A.

92 Ross, James

98 Redpath, Harold

98 Reford, Andrew

98 Reford, R. W.

98 Robertson, Duncan

or Ramsay, W. M.

or Robertson, W. Frew

or Redfern, J. H.

or Rawlings, Edward

03 Riley, James J. J. o7 Robertson, J. S.

74 Paton, Hugh

84 Pinder, John

or Price, W. J.

98 Pangman, J. J. M.

03 Paul, Frank

03 Paterson, James B.

04 Pease, E. L.

of Piddington, A.

o7 Pillow, L. B.

07 Playfair, Jas.

81 Stevenson, J. Alex.

81 Stephens, G. W., Jr.

86 Strathcona and Mount Royal, Lord

88 Sims, A. Haig

88 Spackman, L. McI.

94 Shorey, S. O.

98 Sise, C. F.

98 Stearns, S. P.

99 Shaughnessy, Sir Thos.

99 Strathy, H. Gordon

00 Smithers, Geo. H.	80 Whitehead, LieutCol.
00 Strathy, Ernest deB.	E. A.
or Sugden, B. A.	97 Watson, J. C.
or Sise, Edward F.	97 Watson, R. G.
02 Stewart, Duncan M.	97 Wilgrass, J. O.
o3 Stephens, L. K.	97 Wilson, C. W., M.D.
04 Smith, C. J.	98 Weir, Godfrey
o5 Smith, W. B.	98 Wilson, A. A.
04 Shepherd, F., M.D.	00 Wilson, James Reid
07 Smith, A. Lapthorne,	or White, Smeaton
M.D.	03 Whitehead, E. A., Jr.
07 Savage, J. G.	o3 Wilson, James
07 Strangman, Chas.	03 Watson, Hugh
o7 Scott, E. A.	04 Wilson, W. W. C.
07 Smith, R. Wilson	07 Watson, Graham A.
07 Shirres, A. D., M.D.	

81 Tees, D. Thomas

oo Throsby, Dr. W. Geo.

or Trenholme, C. W.

o7 Towers, C. W. 96 Yates, H. B., M.D.